1992

Hi-Country Estates Homeowners Association v.
Bagley & Company, et al; Foothills Water
Company v. Hi-Country Estates Homeowners
Association, W. Norman Sims, and William P.
Turner : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION AND NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

The Utah Court of Appeals has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to U.C.A. § 78-2-2(3)(a).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL AND STANDARDS OF APPELLATE REVIEW

1. This Court should reverse the trial judge's determination as to the value of the water system on grounds other than those impermissible by the Utah Supreme Court. The standard of review is an abuse of discretion standard.

2. This Court should reverse the trial court's finding that the 1977 Well Lease and Water Transportation Agreement was a valid encumbrance on the water system on grounds other than the PSC Order of March 17, 1986. The standard of review is a legal correctness standard.

CONSTITUTIONAL, PROVISIONS, STATUTES AND RULES

Any relevant text of constitutional provisions, statutes, or rules pertinent to the resolution of the issues presented on appeal is contained in the body of this brief.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case involves a lawsuit originally filed by Plaintiff Hi-Country Estates Homeowners Association on March 8, 1985. After convoluted proceedings in the lower court, Homeowners appealed certain decisions by the trial judge as outlined more specifically in the Statement of Facts, *infra*. After proceedings before the Utah Court of Appeals, and subsequently the Utah Supreme Court, the appeal was referred back to this Court by the Utah Supreme Court.

Homeowners subsequently filed their "Plaintiff/Appellant's Motion to Decide Certain Appeal Issues on Other Grounds" on December 7, 1995. Foothills Water Company (hereafter "Foothills") filed a response to Homeowners' Motion, and Homeowners subsequently filed a reply to Foothills' response. This Court then subsequently issued an Order requiring full briefing of the issues involved in Homeowners' Motion. See greater details in Statement of Facts, *infra*.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. On March 8, 1985, Homeowners filed the instant action (R. 2-17). Homeowners subsequently filed a Second Amended Complaint (March 16, 1987) asking the Court to quiet title and/or issue a declaratory judgment declaring the rights and responsibilities of Homeowners with respect to ownership of a water system, water lots, a water right and the real estate and easements related thereto, which serves Hi-Country Estates Subdivision Phase I in southwestern Salt Lake County. (R. 296-304).

2. Defendant-Appellees Foothills Water Company (hereafter "Foothills") and Dansie answered Homeowners' Second Amended Complaint on March 21, 1987, and counter-claimed against Counter-Claim Defendants Sims and Turner for slander of title and against Homeowners to quiet title to the water right, water system and components in Foothills Water Company. Dansie and Foothills also filed a Cross-Claim against Defendants Spencer and Lewton for slander of title (R. 341-352).

3. Homeowners replied to the Dansie and Foothills Counterclaims on July 9, 1987 (R. 371-373).

4. Charles E. Lewton and Keith Spencer, two of the original developers of Hi-Country Estates Subdivision Phase I, having chosek to disclaim their interest in any of the property involved, allowed judgment to be taken against them. (R. 897, 902, 904). The same was true of Defendants Hi-Country Estates, Inc., and Hi-Country Estates Second (R. 897, 902, 903). No appeals were taken by any of these parties. Defendant J. Rodney Dansie participated in the lower court but failed to appeal from any of the Court's Orders in this case. All unknown persons claiming an interest in Hi-Country Estates Subdivision were served pursuant to an Order Authorizing Service of Summons by Publication entered on March 23, 1987, by the Honorable David B. Dee (R. 312, 313). Proof of Publication was presented to the Court on or about May 1, 1987 (R. 340). Therefore, the only parties against whom title was not quieted in this case were Foothills and Gerald H. Bagley and Bagley & Company.

5. Trial began on August 25, 1988. On that date, the Court entered a Minute Entry stating:

"This matter comes on before the Court for trial, with appearances as shown above. The Plaintiff's and Defendants' counsel meet with the Court in chambers, and opening remarks are therefore waived. Thereupon, the Plaintiff calls Marge Tempest and she is sworn and examined. The respective counsel then agreed to submit the matter via written proffer. The matter will be further argued on September 9, 1988, at 1:00 p.m." (Emphasis supplied).

(R. 452).

6. The Court's decision of October 25, 1988, was embodied in an "Order on Ownership Issues" signed by Judge Brian on October 20, 1989 (R. 895-898). At that time,

the Court also signed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (R. 899-904), but left open the issue of fair compensation for the water system.

7. On December 1, 1989, Homeowners filed a "Trial Brief and Motion for Summary Judgment on Valuation Issue", claiming that the Court was bound by the determination of the Public Service Commission of Utah as to the improvements to the subject water system between 1974 and 1985, which the Court ruled was the period of time for which improvements to the system should be valued. (R. 1023-1043).

8. In a Minute Entry of January 31, 1990, the Court denied Homeowner's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment on the valuation issue and scheduled a trial to "determine fair compensation" (R. 1228).

9. Trial was held on the valuation issue on July 30, 31, and August 1, 1990 (R. 1358-1362; R. 1953-2404). Several expert witnesses on valuation were called by both parties.

10. On August 16, 1990, the Court issued its Memorandum Decision (R. 1538-1543), which was embodied in formal Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and "Order Regarding Amount Payable by Plaintiff for Subject Water System" dated October 31, 1990 (R. 1620-1628).

11. At that time, and not on the record, despite a request for the matter to be on the record by the parties, Judge Brian granted the oral motion of Foothills and Bagley to amend his previous Order dated October 31, 1990, with a ruling that if Homeowners failed to pay the sum of \$98,500.00 by August 15, 1991, an Order Quieting Title to the water system would be entered in the name of Foothills Water Company (R. 1647).

12. On February 5, 1991, the trial judge signed the document entitled "Order on Motions to Certify Order as Final and Clarification of Order" in which he ruled among other things:

If the sum of \$98,500.00 required to be paid to Foothills Water Company in paragraph 3 of the Order Regarding Amount Payable by Plaintiff for subject water system, dated October 31, 1990, is not paid in full to Foothills Water Company on or before August 15, 1991, an Order Quieting Title to the water system within the boundaries of Hi-Country Estates Subdivision Phase I and the water right represented by Application No. 33130 (59-1608) on file with the Utah State Department of Natural Resources, Division of Water Rights, and the Utah State Engineer's Office, in Foothills Water Company shall be entered forthwith.

(R. 1647-1649).

13. On August 20, 1991, Judge Brian issued his "Quiet Title Order in Favor of Foothills Water Company", finding that Homeowners had failed to pay the \$98,500.00 on or before August 15, 1991, as required by his Order of October 31, 1990 (R. 1931-1936).

14. On August 22, 1991, Homeowners filed its Notice of Appeal in this matter (R. 1944-46).

15. Foothills and Bagley filed their Notice of Cross-Appeal in this matter on September 18, 1991 (R. 1947-48).

16. After a full hearing and oral argument in the Utah Court of Appeals, the Court of Appeals issued its Opinion in this matter on September 22, 1993. That opinion was a unanimous decision written by the Honorable Regnal W. Garff, Judge. The opinion ruled in Respondent Homeowners Association's favor on every single issue. The Court stated in its "Conclusion":

In conclusion, we (1) affirm the district court's initial conclusion that Homeowners Association holds legal title to the water right, lots and system; (2) remand for the court to issue a quiet title order in Homeowners Association's favor with no contingencies; (3) affirm the court's conclusion that Bagley is not entitled to any damages; (4) affirm the court's conclusion that Foothills Water Company's claim for slander of title be dismissed; (5) reverse the court's order denying summary judgment on the issue of compensation, acknowledging the PSC's order that the amount of \$16,334.99 is includable in the rate base; (6) reverse the district court's order regarding the validity of the well lease agreement; and (7) reverse the court's order regarding distribution of water to outsiders, acknowledging the PSC's jurisdiction over that issue.

Slip Op. at 18, 19. (See Addendum 1).

17. Foothills petitioned the Utah Court of Appeals for Rehearing pursuant to the provisions of Rule 35 of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure on October 13, 1993.

18. The Utah Court of Appeals denied Foothills' Petition for Rehearing on December 7, 1993.

19. Foothills was the only Defendant which petitioned the Utah Supreme Court for certiorari. The decision of the Utah Court of Appeals issued September 22, 1993, is final as to all parties except Homeowners and Foothills.

20. The Utah Supreme Court granted Foothills' Petition for Writ of Certiorari in part on June 13, 1994. The Supreme Court entry related the following simple single sentence "[T]he petition for writ of certiorari is granted only as to the jurisdiction of the Public Service Commission." See Addendum 2. In doing so, the Utah Supreme Court, of necessity, upheld this Court's decision of September 22, 1993, as that decision related to this Court's determinations as follows: (1) affirming the district court's initial conclusion that Homeowners Association holds legal title to the water right, lots and system; (2) remanding

the case for the trial court to issue a Quiet Title Order in Homeowners' favor with no contingencies; (3) affirming the district court's conclusion that Bagley was not entitled to any damages; and (4) affirming the district court's conclusion that Foothills Water Company's claim for slander of title should be dismissed. (See Addendum 2).

21. The Utah Supreme Court issued its opinion after briefing and oral argument on July 20, 1995, (1) reversing the Court of Appeals reversal of the district court's denial of Homeowners' Motion for Summary Judgment on the issue of the amount of reimbursement owed to Foothills Water Company (which had been based on the PSC's decision); (2) reversing the Court of Appeals' determination that the Public Service Commission's Order of March 17, 1986, invalidated the 1977 Well Lease Agreement between Bagley and Dansie; (see Addendum 3 pg. 10); (3) ruled that the Court of Appeals' reversal of an Order of the district court which permitted Foothills to transfer water through the system to customers within its service area, but outside of the subdivision, was moot based upon the subsequent decertification of Foothills by the Public Service Commission. (See Addendum 3 pg. 4, n. 3).

22. This matter was remitted to the Utah Court of Appeals on September 26, 1995, for further proceedings consistent with the Supreme Court opinion. (See Addendum 4).

23. Homeowners filed its Motion to Decide Certain Appeal Issues on Other Grounds on December 7, 1995. Foothills responded to Plaintiff's Motion with its Memorandum on January 5, 1996. Homeowners then filed its Reply to Foothills Response to Plaintiff/Appellant's Motion to Decide Certain Appeal Issues on Other Grounds on January 18, 1996.

24. This Court issued its "Order on Briefing" on February 8, 1996, requiring the parties to address the issues of (1) whether the district court correctly determined the fair market value of the water right, system and lots was \$98,500.00 under the theory of unjust enrichment, and (2) whether the district court correctly held that the Well Lease Agreement was a valid and binding encumbrance on the water system. The Court also asked the parties to address subissues which included whether the Utah Supreme Court's opinion required affirmance of the district court's ruling on fair market value of the water right, system and lots, and the validity of the Well Lease as an encumbrance on the system, and whether the Well Lease Agreement is a valid and binding encumbrance on the system, and in conjunction therewith, whether the Well Lease Agreement has lapsed. (See Addendum 9).

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

1. While it is true that the Utah Supreme Court has reversed this Court's determination that the trial judge should have granted the valuation urged upon it by Homeowners as found by the Public Service Commission, Homeowners urge this Court to consider the other issues presented in its original briefs before this Court, and in the instant brief, as to why Homeowners should not be required to pay the sum of \$98,500.00 as compensation to Foothills for the water system, water right, and water lots in question. This water system was paid for by Homeowners when they purchased their lots in the subdivision and was a legitimate part of the purchase price for those lots. Homeowners should thus be required to pay nothing to Foothills, but if they were required to pay anything, Homeowners

assert that they should pay no more than the sum of \$27,650.00 as testified to by its expert in this case.

2. Homeowners further urge this Court to reverse the decision of the trial judge regarding the eternal encumbrance on this water system found to be valid by the trial judge based upon the 1977 Well Lease and Water Transportation Agreement. That Agreement expired on its face on April 10, 1987, and cannot possibly constitute a valid and legal encumbrance on this water system. Furthermore, Homeowners were not a party to this agreement and have never been consulted regarding it, yet they are the ones who eternally must bear the burden of this agreement by providing free water to the Dansie family pursuant to the trial judge's initial decision. This decision by the trial judge should be reversed on these grounds, rather than the grounds originally found by the Court in this case, which was subsequently reversed by the Utah Supreme Court.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THIS COURT SHOULD REVERSE THE TRIAL JUDGE'S DETERMINATION AS TO THE VALUE OF THE WATER SYSTEM ON GROUNDS OTHER THAN THOSE FOUND IMPERMISSIBLE BY THE UTAH SUPREME COURT.

Although the Utah Supreme Court found that this Court's determination that the value of the water system, water right and lots in this case could not be based upon a decision by the Public Service Commission (which occurred March 17, 1986), it is the position of Homeowners that this Court should reverse the trial judge's determination that Homeowners should pay \$98,500.00 for the water system, water right and lots in question on other grounds as argued in its original brief before this Court. In that brief, dated

August 10, 1992, and which is a part of the appellate record in this matter, Homeowners argued that the Public Service Commission Order regarding the valuation of the water system should have been adopted by the trial court. Although this Court agreed, the Utah Supreme Court has reversed on that issue and held simply that ". . . the Court of Appeals erred in reversing the district court's denial of the Homeowners Association's Motion for Summary Judgment on the issue of the amount of reimbursement owed to the Water Company and in ordering the district court to defer to the P.S.C." (See Addendum 3, pg. 7, 8). The Utah Supreme Court did not hold that the amount of \$98,500.00 was the amount which Homeowners should be required to pay in this matter, but only found that the amount of \$16,334.99, ordered by this Court, could not be upheld on the basis upon which this Court upheld it, i.e., a decision by the Public Service Commission of March 17, 1986. The Supreme Court found that the Public Service Commission's Order only determined the value of the water system for purposes of rate-making and not for any other purpose.

In its initial brief before this Court, Homeowners argued not only that the value should be set at no more than \$16,334.99 pursuant to the Public Service Commission determination, but also argued that the amount of \$98,500.00 was an unfair and arbitrary amount chosen by the trial judge. Homeowners argued on pages 12-25 of its opening brief to the Court of Appeals in this matter that (1) Homeowners should not have been required to pay for the water right; (2) Homeowners have already paid for the water system and should not be required to pay a second time; (3) the water system in this case has little value to anyone but Homeowners, but at any rate is worth no more than \$27,650.00. Homeowners' arguments in that regard are reproduced in Addendum 5 attached to this

brief. Those arguments are not repeated, but the Court is requested to review those arguments and use them as a basis for reversing the trial court's determination that Homeowners should pay Foothills \$98,500.00 as compensation in this matter.

POINT II

THIS COURT SHOULD REVERSE THE TRIAL COURT'S FINDING THAT THE 1977 WELL LEASE AND WATER TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT WAS A VALID ENCUMBRANCE ON THE WATER SYSTEM ON GROUNDS OTHER THAN THE PSC ORDER OF MARCH 17, 1986.

In its decision reversing this Court with regard to the 1977 Well Lease Agreement, the Supreme Court again focused on the jurisdiction of the Public Service Commission and ruled that ". . . The PSC did not have jurisdiction to invalidate the 1977 Well Lease Agreement as long as that agreement did not impact the rates paid by the Homeowners Association. Although the PSC has power to construe contracts effecting matters within its jurisdiction such as rate-making, ordinary contracts unrelated to such matters are outside of the purview of PSC jurisdiction." (See Addendum 3, pg. 10).

Therefore, although the Utah Supreme Court reversed this Court's decision reversing the trial court in finding that the 1977 Well Lease Agreement was a valid encumbrance on the water system, it did so only on the basis that this Court relied on the March 17, 1986 decision of the Public Service Commission as grounds for such invalidation. It is the argument of Homeowners that this Court should now proceed to determine whether or not the 1977 Well Lease Agreement should be invalidated on other grounds argued originally by Homeowners in its briefs before this Court, which resulted in this Court's September 22, 1993, opinion.

Homeowners argued on pages 42 through 47 of its initial brief (See Addendum 7) and pages 40 through 43 of its Consolidated Reply Brief and Cross-Appellee's Brief (See Addendum 8) before this Court that this 1977 Well Lease and Water Transportation Agreement, attached as Addendum 15 to its opening brief before this Court and admitted into evidence in the trial of the matter as Plaintiff's Exhibit 11 (R. 1359, 1857-1867) (See Addendum 6 to this Memorandum), was invalid not only because the Public Service Commission found that it was "grossly unreasonable" and "showering virtually limitless benefits on Jessie Dansie and the members of his immediate family," but also because this agreement terminated on its face on April 10, 1987, and was never renewed. Since the agreement terminated by its own terms on that date, and no extensions of the agreement were ever submitted, it cannot be a valid basis for an encumbrance upon this water system "for time and all eternity" as essentially ruled by the trial judge in this case.

Furthermore, Homeowners argued before this Court that they were not parties to this agreement; and to impose its "grossly unreasonable" terms upon them would be unfair and unjust, because they are the persons the Agreement was supposed to have benefited in the first place.

Homeowners also argued that the Well Lease and Water Line Extension Agreement itself provides in paragraph F.2 "Bagley will be personally responsible for lease terms and conditions if Assignee fails to meet the terms and conditions of the lease. No assignment, conveyance or sublease shall release Bagley from liabilities and obligations under this agreement." (See Addendum 7 pg. 45).

Homeowners also argued in its opening and reply briefs in this matter that the trial court had failed to enter adequate findings regarding its decision that the 1977 Well Lease Agreement should be a valid and fully binding encumbrance on the water system as long as the water system "exists and is operative." Homeowners pointed out that the Court had also indicated in its Finding of Fact on this issue that "that encumbrance does not in any way legally burden the water system or the owner or operator of the water system." Homeowners argued that this Finding of Fact is internally inconsistent and thus incomprehensible. Furthermore, Homeowners argued that Finding of Fact No. 5 (the Finding of Fact referred to herein) is not a legitimate Finding of Fact, but constituted a Conclusion of Law. Homeowners pointed out that the Conclusion of Law reached by the Court on this subject seemed inconsistent with its Finding of Fact No. 5. In that Conclusion of Law, the judge referred to a water right, but the 1977 Well Lease Agreement nowhere mentions a water right. It is the lease of a well! (See Addendum 7 and 8).

CONCLUSION

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