1992

Hi-Country Estates Homeowners Association v. Bagley & Company, Gerald H. Bagley and Foothills Water Company : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

Homeowners' attempts in its brief to recharacterize its former arguments are a veiled attempt to convince this court to overrule the decision of the Utah Supreme Court in this case. That decision compels affirmance of the district court's rulings. Homeowners based its original argument for reversal of the district court's determination of value and the effect of the well lease agreement on findings and an order entered by the Public Service Commission (the "PSC"). This court reversed the district court's findings on that basis. The Utah Supreme Court's opinion, holding that the PSC has no jurisdiction to value the water system for purposes of determining the appropriate compensation to avoid unjust enrichment, or to invalidate the well lease agreement, eliminates Homeowners' argument for reversal, and thus compels affirmance.

Homeowners has failed to demonstrate that the district court's valuation of the water right, system and lots for purposes of determining appropriate compensation is clearly erroneous. The district court reviewed the evidence regarding valuation, including expert testimony presented on both sides, during a three day trial.

Homeowners' extensive efforts to gain control of the water system belie Homeowners' assertion that the system is worth no more than \$27,650. A detailed review of the evidence would demonstrate that, if the district committed error in connection with its valuation, the district court set an unjustifiably low figure.

The district court correctly found that the well lease agreement is a valid and binding encumbrance on the water system. In partial consideration for the lease of the Dansie well, Gerald H. Bagley ("Bagley"), former owner of the water system, agreed that Jesse H. Dansie ("Dansie") would have the right, along with his immediate family, to receive up to 12 million gallons of water per year, and that Dansie would have the right to use any excess water from the system and only be required to pay incremental costs. The well lease agreement, which was a recorded document, expressly provided that these rights would continue after expiration or termination of the agreement for so long as the water system continued to operate. The stipulated facts and the clear language of the well lease agreement compel the decision reached by the district court.

ARGUMENT

I. THE UTAH SUPREME COURT'S OPINION COMPELS AFFIRMANCE OF THE DISTRICT COURT'S RULINGS.

Foothills argued in its memorandum in response to Homeowners' motion to decide issues on other grounds that

rebriefing was unnecessary. The Utah Supreme Court rejected the arguments advanced by Homeowners for reversal of the issues remaining in this case and remanded the case to this court to complete the appeals process. The Utah Supreme Court's opinion, Hi-Country Estates Homeowner's Ass'n. v. Bagley & Co., 901 P.2d 1017 (Utah 1995), compels affirmance of the district court's rulings that the fair market value of the water right, system and lots is \$98,500 to avoid unjust enrichment and that the 1977 Well Lease and Water Line Extension Agreement (the "Well Lease") is a valid and binding encumbrance on the water system.

On appeal of the district court's judgment to this court, Homeowners based its original argument on appeal for reversal of these rulings on the binding effect of the findings and order of the PSC dated March 17, 1986. Based on the PSC order, this court reversed the district court's denial of Homeowners' motion for summary judgment on the issue of the amount of reimbursement owed to Foothills. Hi-Country Estates Homeowners Ass'n v. Bagley & Co., 863 P.2d 1, 10 (Utah Ct. App. 1993). This court concluded that the PSC's determination of the value of the improvements to the water system that could be included in the rate base bound the district court to limit its reimbursement award to \$16,334.99. Id.

This court also reversed the district court's holding that the Well Lease is a valid and binding encumbrance on the water system, also based on the PSC order. Id. at 11-12. The PSC had

stated in passing that it would be unreasonable to expect the rate-payers to support the entire burden of the Well Lease. Consequently, this court concluded that the PSC order invalidated the Well Lease, id., although the PSC never intended to invalidate the Well Lease.

The Utah Supreme Court concluded that the PSC does not have authority to value the water system in this case for purposes of determining the amount of unjust enrichment, and that the PSC determined the value of the water system only for purposes of rate-making in its 1986 order. Hi-Country Estates Homeowners Ass'n., 901 P.2d at 1021-22. Accordingly, the Utah Supreme Court reversed this court's decision regarding the issue of the amount of reimbursement owed to Foothills. Id. at 1022.

The Utah Supreme Court further held that the PSC did not have jurisdiction to invalidate the Well Lease so long as that agreement did not impact the rates paid by the homeowners, and that the PSC's 1986 order did not purport or intend to invalidate the Well Lease. Id. at 1023. Accordingly, the Utah Supreme Court reversed this court's determination that the PSC's order invalidated the Well Lease. Id. at 1024. In its analysis of the Well Lease, the Utah Supreme Court pointed out that the district court ruled that the Well Lease was a valid and binding encumbrance on the water system notwithstanding the PSC's order. Id. at 1022. While the Utah Supreme Court did not expressly mandate affirmance

of the district court's rulings, its decision invalidates Homeowners' argument for reversal and compels affirmance.

In any event, Homeowners has not demonstrated that the district court's finding regarding fair market value is clearly erroneous, and the district court's ruling regarding the binding effect of the Well Lease is correct. Insofar as this court reviews the rulings of the district court, the decision of the Utah Supreme Court makes clear that any review may not be based directly or indirectly on the PSC's 1986 findings and order.

II. HOMEOWNER'S HAS NOT SHOWN THAT THE DISTRICT COURT'S DETERMINATION REGARDING THE FAIR MARKET VALUE OF THE WATER RIGHT, SYSTEM AND LOTS IS CLEARLY ERRONEOUS.

Homeowners has failed to demonstrate that the \$98,500 fair market valuation of the water right, system and lots for purposes of determining the appropriate compensation to Foothills is clearly erroneous.¹ The trial of this issue continued over a

¹ Further, an issue that must be addressed by the district court is the appropriate compensation to be paid to Foothills by Homeowners to compensate Foothills for Homeowners' use of water lines belonging to Foothills to transport water outside of the Hi-Country Estates subdivision to customers formerly served by Foothills. The district court originally issued an interlocutory order permitting Foothills to transport water through the disputed water system to Foothills' customers within its service area but outside the subdivision. See Hi-Country Estates Homeowner's Ass'n. v. Bagley & Co., 863 P.2d 1, 12 (Utah Ct. App. 1993). This court reversed that order. Id. The Utah Supreme Court concluded that the rights of Foothills to transport water to its customers outside the subdivision are now moot given that Foothills has been decertified as a public utility by the PSC. Hi-Country Estates Homeowner's Ass'n v. Bagley & Co., 901 P.2d 1017, 1020 n.3 (Utah 1995).

period of three days. Valuation experts were called on both sides. It was the district court's province to assess the credibility of the expert witnesses. Reed v. Reed, 806 P.2d 1182, 1184 (Utah 1991). Homeowners has failed to demonstrate that the factual finding of the district court that the water right, system and lots has a fair market value of \$98,500 is clearly erroneous.

As argued in the Consolidated Initial Brief of Foothills at page 38, "if this Court wished to examine [the] evidence, it would likely conclude that the district court's determination, if taken as based primarily on the value of the disputed property, set an unjustifiably low figure" Stanley S. Postma, an expert retained by Foothills, utilized three approaches to estimate the value of the water system. (See Addendum 2 at 203; R. at 2155.) Mr. Postma arrived at a replacement cost for the water system at \$670,161. (See Addendum 2 at 204; R. at 2156.) Mr. Postma concluded that the depreciated residual value of the water system was \$559,400. (See Addendum 2 at 212; R. at 2164.) Finally,

Although Foothills may not transport water to its former customers, Homeowners should not be able to transport water to these customers without compensating Foothills for the use of Foothill's lines. In the Findings of Fact entered by the PSC in connection with the decertification of Foothills, the Administrative Law Judge recited that the laterals to serve two contiguous areas, namely Beagley Acres and South Oquirrh, are not owned by Homeowners, and that Homeowners would either replace those laterals or reach accommodation with Foothills. (See Appendix 1 at 2.) The district court's unjust enrichment valuation did not include lines to Foothills' former customers outside the subdivision.

utilizing a net present value approach, Mr. Postma valued the system at between \$169,907.87 and \$319,800. (See Addendum 2 at 213; R. at 2165.) By weighting these three valuation approaches, Mr. Postma arrived at a value of the system between \$250,000 and \$300,000. (See id.) Further, Mr. Postma testified that the water right was worth between \$149,000 and \$182,000 for a total value of between \$409,000 and \$482,000. (See Addendum 2 at 219, 221; R. at 2171, 2173.)

Seth Schick, another expert hired by Foothills, testified that he would add \$115,000 to the valuation of the water system by Mr. Postma for the value of the set-up of the system, and would add \$60,000 depending on the ownership of easements. (See Addendum 2 at 320-21; R. at 2272-73.) Mr. Seth testified that the water right was worth \$359,000 based on a discounted present value. (See Addendum 2 at 322-23; R. at 2274-75.)

Homeowners argues that the water system has little value to anyone but Homeowners, but in any rate is worth no more than \$27,650. Nonetheless, as argued in the Consolidated Initial Brief of Foothills at page 38, "[t]he extent of [Homeowners'] efforts to obtain control over the water system is itself evidence that [Homeowners] places a value on the property far in excess of the absurdly low figure of \$27,650 at which [Homeowners] claims to value the system."

One evaluation expert called by Homeowners testified that the water system had no value. Mr John Probasco testified that the value of the system based on a net book value basis would be over \$93,000, but that additional expenditures would be needed. (See Addendum 3 at 99-101; R. at 2051-53.) Mr. Probasco acknowledged that another valuation method would be to determine the cost to each homeowner to drill a well to replace reliance on the system, and that cost would equal approximately \$15,000 for each homeowner served. (See Addendum 3 at 105-06; R. at 2057-58.) Mr. Probasco further testified that his testimony was the first time he had prepared testimony to arrive at a fair market valuation as if a water system were going to be sold. (See Addendum 3 at 107; R. at 2059.)

Finally, Mr. Richard Ellis testified that he had valued the system at \$27,650 for purchase by the Salt Lake County Water Conservancy District. (See Addendum 3 at 126-29; R. at 2078-81.) Mr. Ellis' estimate was based on a net present value calculation based on projected net revenues. (See Addendum 3 at 125-26; R. at 2077-78.) Mr. Ellis acknowledged that his revenue projection was based on the Water Conservancy District rate for water at \$.79 per thousand gallons, rather than the rate authorized to be charged by Foothills at \$2.40 per thousand gallons. (See Addendum 3 at 129-30; R. at 2081-82.) The resulting valuations of Homeowners'

experts were much less than the system is worth as evidenced by Homeowners' dogged attempts to gain control.

The district court also considered the evidence regarding the alleged payment by Homeowners for the water right, system and lots. As argued in the Consolidated Initial Brief of Foothills at page 39, "[n]one of the evidence cited by [Homeowners] compels (or indeed even supports) a conclusion that the developers ever intended or agreed that [Homeowners] would ever be given title or control, at no cost, of valuable assets in which [the developers] had invested considerable sums of money."

Further, this argument goes beyond the scope of the Order on Briefing. The issue requested to be addressed was "[w]hether the district court's finding, under a theory of 'unjust enrichment' that the fair market value of the water right, system and lots is \$98,500 is clearly erroneous." (Order on Briefing at 3.) This argument does not address the fair market value of the water right, system and lots, but argues that compensation under a theory of "unjust enrichment" is inappropriate. Insofar as this argument is beyond the scope of the Order on Briefing, it should be stricken from the brief.

After a three day trial, the district court found that the fair market value of the water right, system and lots is \$98,500 for purposes of determining the appropriate compensation to be paid to Foothills. Homeowners has failed to demonstrate that

this finding of the district court is clearly erroneous such that a lower value is appropriate.

III. THIS COURT SHOULD AFFIRM THE DISTRICT COURT'S DETERMINATION THAT THE WELL LEASE AGREEMENT IS A VALID AND BINDING ENCUMBRANCE ON THE WATER SYSTEM.

The district court appropriately found that the Well Lease is a valid encumbrance on the water system. Pursuant to the terms of the Well Lease, Jesse H. Dansie ("Dansie") granted a leasehold interest in the Dansie well to Bagley, and agreed to construct certain line extensions. In consideration, Bagley agreed to pay an up front fee, plus monthly payments, plus a percentage of fees received from residences outside of the Hi-Country Estates property. As further consideration, Bagley agreed that Dansie and members of his immediate family would have the right to receive up to 12 million gallons of water at no cost, and to use any excess water from the system not required by customers of the water company, provided that Dansie would pay the incremental pumping costs. (See Addendum 6 to Homeowners' Brief.) On October 19, 1984, Dansie filed a Notice of Interest in Real Property with the County Recorder giving notice of his interest in the water system arising from the Well Lease. (See R. at 575, 1844; Addendum 4 hereto.)

The right to receive water was to continue beyond the expiration or termination of the Well Lease so long as the water system is in existence. (See Addendum 6 to Homeowners' Brief at 7-

8.) The Well Lease gave Dansie the continuing right to use the excess capacity of the water system, which excess capacity was created in part at the time of the Well Lease by the connection of the water system to the Dansie well, provided that Dansie would pay any incremental costs. The district court recognized the validity of the Well Lease, and concluded that Dansie's continuing right to use the excess capacity of the water system remained a valid and binding encumbrance on the water system.

As a review of Addendum 7 to Homeowners' Brief will reveal, Homeowners based its argument that the Well Lease is not a valid encumbrance on the water system on the findings of the PSC. In rearguing several of the points in its April 8, 1996 Brief, Homeowners directly and indirectly encourages this court to rely on findings of the PSC in reviewing the district court's finding that the Well Lease is a valid encumbrance on the water system.

For example, Homeowners argues that it would be unfair and unjust to impose the "grossly unreasonable" terms of the Well Lease upon them because they were not parties to the agreement, and because they are the persons the Well Lease was supposed to have benefitted in the first place. This argument in Homeowners' original brief is based upon the PSC's determination in the 1986 findings and order that the Well Lease was unreasonable insofar as it affected the rates to be paid by the homeowners. Nowhere in Homeowners' Brief nor in Homeowners' initial Appellant's Brief does

Homeowners explain or argue how or why the Well Lease is unreasonable save by referring to the findings and order of the PSC. (See Addendum 7 to Homeowners' Brief.)

As the Utah Supreme Court found, the PSC's 1986 order does not purport to invalidate the Well Lease, nor would the PSC have had that authority. Hi-Country Estates Homeowners Ass'n, 901 P.2d at 1023. The district court did not find the Well Lease to be unreasonable for purposes of determining its binding effect, but found it to be a valid and binding encumbrance on the water system.

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